» Earth Negotl ations Bulletin

A Reportl ng Service for Environment and Devel opment Negotl ations
| stanbul+5 online at http://www.iisd.ca/habitat/istanbul+5/

Habitat

#3

Vol. 11 No. 46

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

Thursday, 7 June 2001

THE 25TH SPECIAL SESSION OF THE UN
GENERAL ASSEMBLY gl STANBUL +5):
6 JUNE 2

The 25th Special Session of the General Assembly opened on
Wednesday, 6 June 2001, in the General Assembly Hall. Delegates
met in Plenary and al so convened the Committee of the Whole (COW)
for general debate on the review and appraisal of progress madein the
implementation of the Habitat Agendaand further actionsand initia-
tivesfor overcoming obstacles to the implementation of the Habitat
Agenda. Informal negotiations continued on five outstanding para-
graphsinthedraft declaration. In the Thematic Committee, delegates
heard presentations from South Africa, Egypt, Colombia, Senegal and
India

PLENARY

At 9:00 am, the Chair of the Del egation of Finland, Kimmo Sasi,
opened the 25th Specia Session of the General Assembly. A moment
of silence was observed in memory of the King and Queen of Nepal.
General Assembly President Harri Holkeri was el ected President of
the Special Session. He emphasi zed that the Special Sessionisinnova-
tive because the Thematic Committee allows del egations to share
experiences. UN Secretary-General Kofi Annan noted that partner-
shipswith local authorities, NGOs and women'’s groups are particu-
larly important for the eradication of poverty in urban areas.

PrepCom Chair German Garcia-Duran (Colombia) presented the
report of the Commission on Human Settlements (CHS) acting asthe
preparatory committee for the Special Session of the General
Assembly for an overall review and appraisal of theimplementation of
the outcome of the United Nations Conference on Human Settlements
(Hahitat 11) (A/S-25/2). He highlighted the Special Session’smain
substantive document, the draft report of the Executive Director onthe
implementation of the Habitat Agenda (A/S-25/3 and A/S-25/3/
Add.1). Delegatesthen adopted alist of NGOsto address the Plenary
and the provisional agenda (A/S-25/1). The General Assembly agreed
to establish the COW under Chair Garcia-Duran. Statementswere
made by one Deputy Prime Minister, 29 Ministers, four Vice Minis-
ters, 18 Chairs of Delegations and three government representatives.
A list of speechesisavailable onthe Internet at http://www.un.org/gal
habitat/statements.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

Chair Garcia-Durén called the COW to order, and noted that the
President of the General Assembly had informed del egates that the
Bureau for PrepCom |1 would servethe COW. The Chair noted the
organization of work, as conferred by the Plenary. The COW will

addressthree agendaitems: item eight, the review and appraisal of
progress made in theimplementation of the Habitat Agenda; item
nine, further actionsand initiatives for overcoming obstaclesto the
implementation of the Habitat Agenda; and item 10, the declaration on
citiesand other human settlementsin the new millennium. Under
Vice-Chair Olszowka, speakersthen debated items eight and ninein
the COW. Under Chair Garcia-Duran, del egates resumed informal
consultations on item 10.

DRAFT DECLARATION ON CITIES AND OTHER HUMAN
SETTLEMENTS

PARAGRAPH 8 (REPORTS): In areferenceto reportsonthe
Habitat Agenda, the G-77/CHINA requested clarification of thelegal
connotations of “note” and “take note.” Chair Garcia-Duran
explained that taking note meansthat del egates have read the docu-
ment and have not rejected it. Thetext remains bracketed.

PARAGRAPH 33 (DEBT AND ODA): Inlanguage on external
debt, JAPAN and the US pointed out that the reference to “ as appro-
priate” was part of acompromisetext, and that if it isbracketed as
reguested by the G-77/CHINA, then referencesto “ continue to,”
“further,” and “all,” should also remainin brackets. The US proposed
aternative text from GA resol ution 55/184 on the context of poverty
reduction. TheG-77/CHINA objected to theintroduction of new text.
No agreement was reached. On referenceto the ODA target of 0.7% of
GNP, delegates accepted text on strengthening effortsto achieve the
agreed target of 0.7% as soon as possible. NORWAY indicated disap-
pointment with the language, describing it as“weak.”

PARAGRAPH 42 (GENDER): On gender equality, Chair
Garcia-Duran highlighted two alternatives regarding security of
tenure, and a proposal made by the EU on Tuesday to merge the text
with paragraph 43, on equal accessto economic resources. NORWAY
proposed adding language to paragraph 43 to reflect that legidlative
and administrative reformsbe undertaken in order to remove obstacles
and inequalities. The EU said they could accept Norway’s amend-
ment. The G-77/CHINA indicated they could accept the original EU
proposal, but asked Norway to withdraw his proposal. NORWAY
stressed that the Habitat Agendacallsfor the eradication of legal and
social barriers, and said that failure to highlight that obstacles and
inequalities still exist would be denying reality. Attempting to bridge
the gap, the EU offered language recogni zing that obstaclesand
inequalities still exist, and CANADA proposed text on striving to
remove all possible obstaclesand inequalities. The G-77/CHINA
suggested an amendment recogni zing the existence of different
national laws and/or systems of land tenurein striving to remove al
possible obstacles. After further discussion, the EU agreed to remove

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Tonya Barnes <tonya@iisd.org>, Andrei Henry <andrei @iisd.org>, Fiona Koza
<fiona.koza.525@student.lu.se>, LeilaMead <leila@iisd.org> and Gretchn Sidhu <gsidhu@igc.org>. The Digital Editor is Franz Dejon <franz@iisd.org>. The Editor is Pamela
S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Director of 11SD Reporting ServicesisLangston James"Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Operations Manager isMarcelaRojo
<marcela@iisd.org> and the On-Line Assistant is Diego Noguera <diego@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the
Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forestsand L andscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom (through
the Department for I nternational Development - DFID, and the Foreign & Commonwealth Office), the European Commission (DG-ENV), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs,
and the Government of Germany (through German Federal Ministry of Environment - BMU, and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation - BMZ). General

Support for the Bulletin during 2001 is provided by the Ministry of Environment and the Ministry of Foreign Affairsof Austriag, the Ministriesof Foreign Affairsand Environment
of Norway, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Finland, the Government of Australia, the Ministry of Environment and the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of
Sweden, the New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairsand Trade, the French Ministry of Foreign Affairsand the Japan Ministry of Environment (through the Institute for Global

Environmental Strategies - IGES.) Funding for coverage of Istanbul +5 has been provided by the German Gesellschaft flr Technische Zusammenarbeit (GTZ). The Bulletin can
be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org>and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1 SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East,
6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of
11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For
permission to use thismateria in commercia publications, contact the Director of 11SD Reporting Services. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution lists
and can befound on the Linkages WWW server at http://wwuw.iisd.ca. Free subscriptionsavailable at http://iisd.ca/enb/email.asp. The satellite image was taken above New York
©2001 TheLiving Earth, Inc. For information on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin, or to arrange for reporting from your conference or workshiop send e-mail to <kimo@iisd.org>.




Thursday, 7 June 2001

Vol. 11 No. 46 Page 2

their proposal on recognizing the existence of obstaclesand inequali-
ties. Thefirst EU proposal, and Norwegian, Canadian and G-77/China
proposalsremain in brackets.

PARAGRAPH 34 (WORLD SOLIDARITY FUND): Inarefer-
enceto aworld solidarity fund, the EU noted the UN Secretary-
General isactively working on thisissue, but thetext impliesit has
been newly proposed. TUNISIA proposed adding “ taking into account
the provisions of the GA resolution 55/210,” and al so suggested
removing the words“actively consider” in reference to the establish-
ment of thefund. The EU, supported by JAPAN, proposed alternate
text on wel coming the ongoing consultations of the UN Secretary-
General on the establishment of afund. The G-77/CHINA said it
would consider the text, which remains bracketed.

PARAGRAPH 37 (DECENTRALIZATION): Regarding
Canada’s proposal tabled Tuesday onintensifying dialogue on effec-
tive decentralizations, the G-77/CHINA proposed that dialoguebein
conformity with the legal framework and policies of each country. The
EU added referenceto the CHS and to guiding principlesfor local
government and suggested that dialogue be undertaken with aview to
reaching aconsensus on aninternational enabling framework that
would guide national legislativereforms. The US, EGY PT, JAPAN,
CANADA, SUDAN, MEXICO and CHINA supported Canada’'s
proposal aswith the G-77/Chinaamendments, but opposed the EU’s
amendments. Modifying the G-77/China-amended Canadian proposal,
the EU proposed language on guiding principlesfor local government
and, asappropriate, legal frameworks, noting thiswas agreed language
by the CHS. Thetext remains bracketed.

THEMATIC COMMITTEE

The Chair of the Thematic Committee, HabeddineBelaid (Tunisia)
introduced the Bureau, including Vice-Chairs José MariaMatamoros
(Venezuela), ErnaWitoelar (Indonesia) and Luis Garcia Cerezo
(Spain), and appointed Laszl6 Miklés (Slovak Republic) as Rappor-
teur. He highlighted the Committee’s sub-themes of housing, social
development, bal anced structures for human settlements, environ-
mental management, economic devel opment, governance, financing
for urban devel opment and strategies for development of cities. He
stated that each presentation would examine impacts of multi-sectoral
elements, including: participation, partnership and cooperation;
poverty reduction; gender equality; social inclusion; upgrading of
local practices; and knowledge exchange. He also noted that the 16
presentationsto be given over three days reflect successes of national
governments, local authorities, and civil society.

SOUTH AFRICA: Sankie Mthembi-Mahanyele, Minister of
Housing for South Africa, presented avideo showing how arights-
based approach to housing is being addressed in both urban and rural
areas nationwide. Strategiesinclude |legislation preventing unfair evic-
tions, upholding the right to adequate housing and addressing the
needs of women and the disabled. Housing subsi dies and government
support for roads, water, sanitation and electricity have combined
successfully with regional cooperation and community involvement to
increase access to housing and create employment. Discussion
revolved around, inter alia, accessto credit, collective savings, land
ownership, technology transfer, upgrading slums, cooperation
between government and communities, and therol e of local authorities
and women.

EGYPT: Mohamed |brahim Soliman, Egyptian Minister of
Housing Utilities and Urban Communities, presented three urban reha-
bilitation and relocation projects, and attributed their successto the
emphasis placed on cultural factors and stakeholder participation at all
stages. Initial planning of the projectsfocused on aholistic view of the
residential environment by incorporating el ements such as green
spacesand social services, and on waysto alleviate the financial
burden on the state by identifying possibilitiesfor private sector
involvement. The debate focused on, inter alia, subsidies, how to
ensure effective participation of women and marginalized sectors of
society, and the enabling roles of all levels of government.

COLOMBIA: Alvaro José Cobo Soto, Minister of Housing for
Colombia, discussed the Holistic Upgrading Programmein the city of
Medellin. He said that contrasting popul ations and levels of socioeco-
nomic development in peripheral areas have created conflict over terri-
tory and resources. He highlighted how a strategy involving local and
national governments, supported by international financial assistance,
hasimproved subnormal areas of the city with projectsto establish a
safe environment, improve quality of life and peacefully integrate citi-
zensinto the city. The discussion addressed: urban integration;
progressive use of referenceto “ subnormal” areasto denote communi-
ties currently lacking acceptabl e living conditions; maintenance of
new infrastructures and sustainability of new improvements; and the
necessity of guaranteed resources.

SENEGAL : Seydon Sy Sall, Minister of Town Planning and
National and Regional Development of Senegal, described apilot
project to secureland tenure, improve basic servicesand develop local
economic basesin several squatter towns. Heidentified challenges
including thedifficulty in planning for future spontaneous settlements,
improving accessto credit, and the creation and implementation of
mechanismsto prevent land speculation. Subsequent debate focused
on curbing rural exodus, corruption at thelocal level, the distinction
between land ownership and the right to useland, and a proposed UN-
sponsored network to share Habitat-rel ated best practices.

INDIA: SheelaPatel of SPARC, aBombay partnership of local
actors, discussed aprogram successfully initiated in threecities
whereby municipalities pay for sustainable sanitation facilities created
and managed by communities. Working together to design, build and
maintain public toilet blocks has allowed municipalities, senior
leaders, contracted artisans and the poor to work together, making
sustai nabl e sanitation occasion for social celebration. Participants
focused on how such projects have reduced illness and disease,
promoted community participation while producing awareness of the
value of work and increasing management capabilities, provided
opportunity to use grant funding to create successful projectsthat can
garner funding from municipalities, and fostered public-private sector
relationships.

IN THE CORRIDORS

As negotiations stretched into the evening yesterday, del egates
wondered if newly introduced text for the chapeau and on foreign
occupation and refugees would be the key unlocking therest of the
negotiations. Were del egations hardening positions on other issuesin
order to trade off later on? Would the chapeau talks proveto be
“dicey?’ Another observer suggested that the text on foreign occupa-
tion, added during informal s earlier in the week, should include refer-
enceto Tibet. That would at |east add anew political twist, hesaid.
Then there wasthe del egate who wondered why negotiationswere still
being held at all, as smaller delegations were struggling to participate
in the Thematic Committee. After all, he said, thiswas an innovation
designed for governmentsto swap success stories rather than mutually
unacceptable proposals...

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY

PLENARY: At 9:00 am, delegateswill meet for high-level debate
inthe General Assembly Hall.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE: The COW will meet at 9:00
am in Conference Room 2 to debate agendaitems eight and nine.

INFORMAL NEGOTIATIONS: Delegateswill meet at 10:00
am in the Trusteeship Council to continue negotiating outstanding
paragraphs, including newly proposed text for a chapeau and on refu-
gees and foreign occupation.

THEMATIC COMMITTEE: The Thematic Committee will
begin at 9:00 am in Conference Room 4, and feature presentations
from Tanzania, Sweden, China, Poland, Brazil, France, Nigeriaand

Spain.



